

## CHAPTER 729

H.B. No. 1585

An Act relating to the review and abolition of certain state agencies under the Texas Sunset Act.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Texas:*

**SECTION 1.** Chapter 45, Human Resources Code, is amended by adding Section 45.027 to read as follows:

*Sec. 45.027. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The office of administrator of the Interstate Compact on the Placement of Children is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the office is abolished and this subchapter expires September 1, 1987.

**SECTION 2.** Chapter 181, Natural Resources Code, is amended by adding Section 181.020 to read as follows:

*Sec. 181.020. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The Texas Conservation Foundation is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the foundation is abolished and this chapter expires September 1, 1987.

**SECTION 3.** Section 75.029, Human Resources Code, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 75.029. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT [EXPIRATION].* The commission is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act [by law], the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission [commission] is abolished [;] and this chapter expires [effective] September 1, 1987 [1987].

**SECTION 4.** Section 131.0051, Human Resources Code, is amended by adding Subsection (d) to read as follows:

*(d) The Medical Care Advisory Committee is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the committee is abolished and this section expires September 1, 1987.*

**SECTION 5.** Section 12a, Article 42.12, Code of Criminal Procedure, 1965, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 12a.* The Board of Pardons and Paroles is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the [; but it is not abolished under that Act. The] board is [shall be reviewed under the Texas Sunset Act during the period in which state agencies] abolished [effective] September 1, [of] 1987 [and of every 12th year after 1987 are reviewed].

**SECTION 6.** Section 2.08, Article 42.121, Code of Criminal Procedure, 1965, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 2.08.* The Texas Adult Probation Commission is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act [by law], the commission is abolished and this article expires [effective] September 1, 1987.

**SECTION 7.** Section 2a, Chapter 316, Acts of the 61st Legislature, Regular Session, 1969 (Article 5561f, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 2a.* The office of Interstate Compact on Mental Health Administrator for Texas is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [; and unless] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the office is abolished [;] and this Act expires [effective] September 1, 1987 [1985].

**SECTION 8.** Section 11.003, Agriculture Code, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 11.003. SUNSET PROVISION.* The Department of Agriculture [department] is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the department is abolished [and this chapter expires effective] September 1, 1989 [1987].

**SECTION 9.** Section 161.027, Agriculture Code, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 161.027. SUNSET PROVISION.* The Texas Animal Health Commission [commission] is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished [effective] September 1, 1989 [1987].

**SECTION 10.** Section (c), Article 6663, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

(c) The State Department of Highways and Public Transportation is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless ~~;~~ and unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the department is abolished ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1989 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 11.** Section 42.002(b), Agriculture Code, is amended to read as follows:

(b) The Natural Fibers and Food Protein Commission is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished and this chapter expires ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1989 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 12.** Section 133.001(b), Agriculture Code, is amended to read as follows:

(b) The Poultry Improvement Board is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished and this section expires September 1, 1989 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 13.** Chapter 5, Tax Code, is amended by adding Section 5.11 to read as follows:

*Sec. 5.11. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT. The State Property Tax Board is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished September 1, 1989.*

**SECTION 14.** Section 62.002(e), Agriculture Code, is amended to read as follows:

(e) The State Seed and Plant Board is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished ~~[s]~~ and this chapter expires ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1989 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 15.** Section 57.12(a), Education Code, is amended to read as follows:

(a) The Texas Guaranteed Student Loan Corporation is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless ~~[and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the corporation is abolished ~~[s]~~ and this chapter expires ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1989 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 16.** Chapter 746, Acts of the 66th Legislature, Regular Session, 1979 (Article 4413(34b), Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended by adding Section 10A to read as follows:

*Sec. 10A. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT. The State Aircraft Pooling Board is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished and this Act expires September 1, 1991.*

**SECTION 17.** Section 5.01(b), Alcoholic Beverage Code, is amended to read as follows:

(b) The Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission ~~[commission]~~ is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless ~~[it is]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished and this code expires ~~[on]~~ September 1, 1991 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 18.** Section 55.006, Title 110B, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 55.006. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT. The board of trustees of the Texas County and District Retirement System is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), but is not abolished under that Act. The board shall be reviewed under that Act during the period in which state agencies abolished ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1991 ~~[1989]~~, and every 12th year after that date are reviewed.*

**SECTION 19.** Section 132.006, Human Resources Code, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 132.006. APPLICATION OF OTHER LAWS. ~~[(a)]~~ The council on disabilities is subject to the Texas Sunset Act ~~;~~ as amended (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished and this chapter ~~[Act]~~ expires ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1991 ~~[1989]~~.*

**SECTION 20.** Section 133.006, Human Resources Code, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 133.006. APPLICATION OF OTHER LAWS. ~~[(a)]~~ The long-term care coordinating council for the elderly is subject to the Texas Sunset Act ~~;~~ as amended (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished and this chapter ~~[Act]~~ expires ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1991 ~~[1989]~~.*

**SECTION 21.** Section 25.005, Title 110B, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

*Sec. 25.005. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT. The board of trustees of the Employees Retirement System of Texas is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), but is not abolished under that Act. The board shall be reviewed under that Act during the period in which state agencies abolished ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1991 ~~[1989]~~, and every 12th year after that date are reviewed.*

**SECTION 22.** Section 19A, Chapter 125, Acts of the 45th Legislature, Regular Session, 1937 (Article 6243e, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 19A. The office of Firemen's Pension Commissioner is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [; and unless] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the office is abolished [;] and this Act expires September 1, 1991 [1987].

**SECTION 23.** Section 1a, Chapter 668, Acts of the 61st Legislature, Regular Session, 1969 (Article 4413(35), Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The Commission on Fire Protection Personnel Standards and Education is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [; and unless] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished [;] and this Act expires [effective] September 1, 1991 [1987].

**SECTION 24.** Section 131.008(a), Human Resources Code, is amended to read as follows:

(a) The *Texas Health and Human Services Coordinating Council* [council] is subject to the Texas Sunset Act [; as amended] (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished and this chapter [Act] expires [effective] September 1, 1991 [1989].

**SECTION 25.** Section 3a, Chapter 480, Acts of the 64th Legislature, Regular Session, 1975 (Article 5115.1, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 3a. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The Commission on Jail Standards is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [; and unless] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished [;] and this Act expires [effective] September 1, 1991 [1987].

**SECTION 26.** Section 65.006, Title 110B, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 65.006. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The board of trustees of the *Texas Municipal Retirement System* is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), but is not abolished under that Act. The board shall be reviewed under that Act during the period in which state agencies abolished [effective] September 1, 1991 [1989], and every 12th year after that date are reviewed.

**SECTION 27.** Section 35.006, Title 110B, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 35.006. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The board of trustees of the *Teacher Retirement System of Texas* is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), but is not abolished under that Act. The board shall be reviewed under that Act during the period in which state agencies abolished [effective] September 1, 1991 [1989], and every 12th year after that date are reviewed.

**SECTION 28.** Section 1a, Chapter 312, Acts of the 52nd Legislature, Regular Session, 1951 (Article 6889-5, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. The office of Interstate Civil Defense and Disaster Compact Administrator for Texas is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [; and unless] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the office is abolished [;] and this Act expires [effective] September 1, 1991 [1987].

**SECTION 29.** Section 6, Chapter 324, Acts of the 67th Legislature, Regular Session, 1981 (Article 4413(49), Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 6. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* (a) The *Criminal Justice Policy Council* [council] is subject to the Texas Sunset Act [; as amended] (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished September 1, 1993 [; and expires 12 years from its creation].

(b) The *Criminal Justice Coordinating Council* is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished September 1, 1993.

**SECTION 30.** Section 1a, Chapter 546, Acts of the 59th Legislature, Regular Session, 1965 (Article 4413(29aa), Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. The Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education is subject to the Texas Sunset Act [; as amended] (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [; and unless] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished [;] and this Act expires [effective] September 1, 1993 [1995].

**SECTION 31.** The Texas Low-Level Radioactive Waste Disposal Authority Act (Article 4590f-1, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes) is amended by adding Section 2.19 to read as follows:

Sec. 2.19. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The *Texas Low-Level Radioactive Waste Disposal Authority* is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil

*Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the authority is abolished and this Act expires September 1, 1993.*

**SECTION 32.** Section 1a, Chapter 181, General Laws, Acts of the 44th Legislature, Regular Session, 1935 (Article 4413(1a), Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The Department of Public Safety is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). ~~Unless [; and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the department is abolished ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1993 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 33.** Section 5a, Public Utility Regulatory Act (Article 1446c, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 5a. The Public Utility Commission of Texas and the Office of Public Utility Counsel are subject to the Texas Sunset Act ~~[; as amended]~~ (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). ~~Unless [; and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission and the Office of Public Utility Counsel are abolished ~~[;]~~ and this Act expires ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1993 ~~[1985]~~.

**SECTION 34.** Section 1a, Chapter 348, Acts of the 63rd Legislature, Regular Session, 1973 (Article 4498c, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. The State Rural Medical Education Board is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), but it is not abolished under that Act. The board shall be reviewed under the Texas Sunset Act during the period in which state agencies abolished ~~[effective]~~ September 1 of 1993 ~~[1989]~~ and of every 12th year after 1993 ~~[1989]~~ are reviewed.

**SECTION 35.** Section 22, Chapter 381, Acts of the 68th Legislature, Regular Session, 1983 (Article 4512], Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 22. *SUNSET PROVISION.* *The State Committee of Examiners for Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the committee is abolished and this Act expires September 1, 1993. [Unless reenacted, the provisions of this Act shall be without effect after August 31, 1993.]*

**SECTION 36.** Chapter 112, Human Resources Code, is amended by adding Section 112.021 to read as follows:

Sec. 112.021. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* *The Texas Planning Council for Developmental Disabilities is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished and this chapter expires September 1, 1995.*

**SECTION 37.** Article 6252-9d, Revised Statutes, is amended by adding Section 10A to read as follows:

Sec. 10A. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* *The State Ethics Advisory Commission is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished and this article expires September 1, 1995.*

**SECTION 38.** Section 2a, Chapter 13, Acts of the 62nd Legislature, 4th Called Session, 1972 (Article 4413(45), Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2a. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The Texas Film Commission is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). ~~Unless [; and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished ~~[;]~~ and this Act expires ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1995 ~~[1989]~~.

**SECTION 39.** Section 3.03, Commission on Human Rights Act (Article 5221k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 3.03. *SUNSET PROVISION.* The Commission on Human Rights is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). ~~Unless [; and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the commission is abolished ~~[effective]~~ September 1, 1989 ~~[1987]~~.

**SECTION 40.** Article 4330a, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

Art. 4330a. *APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.* The office of secretary of state is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), but it is not abolished under that Act. The office shall be reviewed under the Texas Sunset Act during the period in which state agencies abolished ~~[effective]~~ September 1 of 1995 ~~[1989]~~ and of every 12th year after 1995 ~~[1989]~~ are reviewed.

**SECTION 41.** Section 4, Chapter 391, Acts of the 65th Legislature, Regular Session, 1977 (Article 7244b, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended by adding Subsection (e) to read as follows:

(e) *The Board of Tax Professional Examiners is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished and this Act expires September 1, 1995.*

**SECTION 42.** Section 1(f), Chapter 137, Acts of the 58th Legislature, Regular Session, 1963 (Article 6144f, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

(f) The Texas Tourist Development Agency is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [~~;~~ ~~and unless~~] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the agency is abolished [~~;~~] and this Act expires [~~effective~~] September 1, 1995 [~~1989~~].

**SECTION 43.** Chapter 11, Education Code, is amended by adding Section 11.0611 to read as follows:

*Sec. 11.0611. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT. The governing board of the Texas School for the Blind is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished September 1, 1997.*

**SECTION 44.** Section 5A, Chapter 438, Acts of the 65th Legislature, Regular Session, 1977 (Article 2324b, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 5A. The Court Reporters Certification Board is subject to the Texas Sunset Act [~~;~~ ~~as amended~~] (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished [~~effective~~] September 1, 1997 [~~1987~~].

**SECTION 45.** Section 14, Chapter 642, Acts of the 66th Legislature, Regular Session, 1979 (Article 4447u, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 14. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT. *The Home Health Services Advisory Council is [~~This Act and the council created thereby are~~] subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [~~;~~ ~~and unless~~] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished [~~;~~] and this Act expires [~~effective~~] September 1, 1997 [~~1991~~].*

**SECTION 46.** Section 4, Texas Hospital Equipment Financing Act (Article 4437e-3, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 4. (a) There is hereby created a nonmember, nonstock public benefit corporation to be known as the Texas Hospital Equipment Financing Council with the powers herein set forth for the purpose of providing at a reasonable cost health-related equipment which the financing council determines will improve the adequacy, cost, and accessibility of health care within this state, which purpose is hereby declared to be a public purpose of this state. The exercise by the financing council of all powers and duties conferred by this Act shall constitute and be deemed and held to be an essential public purpose of the state, acting by and through the financing council, in promoting the general health, welfare, and prosperity of the state and all of its citizens. Neither the state nor the hospital advisory council shall be authorized to lend its credit or grant or loan any public money or thing of value in aid of the financing council.

(b) *The Texas Hospital Equipment Financing Council is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished September 1, 1997.*

**SECTION 47.** Section 1A, Chapter 516, Acts of the 60th Legislature, Regular Session, 1967 (Article 5966a, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1A. APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT. The State Judicial Qualifications Commission is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), but it is not abolished under that Act. The commission shall be reviewed under the Texas Sunset Act during the period in which state agencies abolished [~~effective~~] September 1 of 1997 [~~1987~~] and of every 12th year after 1997 [~~1987~~] are reviewed.

**SECTION 48.** Section 2a, Chapter 722, Acts of the 62nd Legislature, Regular Session, 1971 (Article 5444b, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2a. The State Law Library is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless [~~;~~ ~~and unless~~] continued in existence as provided by that Act, the library is abolished [~~;~~] and this Act expires [~~effective~~] September 1, 1997 [~~1987~~].

**SECTION 49.** Section 1a, Chapter 19, Acts of the 41st Legislature, 1st Called Session, 1929 (Article 2328a, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. The Texas Civil Judicial Council is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (*Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes*). ~~Unless [; and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished [;] and this Act expires [~~effective~~] September 1, 1997 [~~1987~~].

**SECTION 50.** Chapter 365, Acts of the 68th Legislature, Regular Session, 1983 (Article 4512i, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended by adding Section 3A to read as follows:

Sec. 3A. **APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.** *The lay midwifery board is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished and this Act expires September 1, 1997.*

**SECTION 51.** Article 1811aa, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

Art. 1811aa. **APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.** The office of State Prosecuting Attorney is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (*Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes*). ~~Unless [; and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the office is abolished [~~effective~~] September 1, 1997 [~~1987~~].

**SECTION 52.** Chapter 11, Education Code, is amended by adding Section 11.033 to read as follows:

Sec. 11.033. **APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.** *The governing board of the Texas School for the Deaf is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board is abolished September 1, 1997.*

**SECTION 53.** Section 1a, Chapter 32, Acts of the 62nd Legislature, Regular Session, 1971 (Article 6252-6b, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. The Texas Surplus Property Agency is subject to the Texas Sunset Act; and unless continued in existence as provided by that Act the agency is abolished, and this Act expires effective September 1, 1989 [~~1987~~].

**SECTION 54.** The following laws are repealed:

(1) Section 2a, Chapter 293, Acts of the 48th Legislature, Regular Session, 1943 (Article 4413a-8a, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes);

(2) Subsection 3a, Section 5, Chapter 3, page 465, General Laws, Acts of the 46th Legislature, Regular Session, 1939 (Article 5421c-3, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes);

(3) Section 2(D), Chapter 318, Acts of the 51st Legislature, Regular Session, 1949 (Article 5421m, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes);

(4) Section 1a, Chapter 325, Acts of the 52nd Legislature, Regular Session, 1951 (Article 5382d, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes);

(5) Section 1a, Chapter 324, Acts of the 51st Legislature, Regular Session, 1949 (Article 5429b, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes);

(6) Section 1a, Chapter 487, Acts of the 51st Legislature, Regular Session, 1949 (Article 5429c, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes);

(7) Section 2a, Chapter 55, Acts of the 61st Legislature, Regular Session, 1969 (Article 5444a, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes);

(8) Section 1a, Chapter 807, Acts of the 61st Legislature, Regular Session, 1969 (Article 6145-7, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes).

**SECTION 55.** If H.B. 2091, 69th Legislature, Regular Session, 1985, does not become law, Section 1.03, Article 4414b, Revised Statutes, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 1.03. **APPLICATION OF SUNSET ACT.** The Texas Board of Health and the Texas Department of Health are subject to the Texas Sunset Act [~~as amended~~] (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). ~~Unless [; and unless]~~ continued in existence as provided by that Act, the board and the department are abolished [~~effective~~] September 1, 1987 [~~1985~~].

**SECTION 56.** Subsection (d), Section 4, Private Investigators and Private Security Agencies Act (Article 4413(29bb), Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), is amended to read as follows:

(d) The Texas Board of Private Investigators and Private Security Agencies is subject to the Texas Sunset Act, as amended (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes); and unless continued in existence as provided by that Act the board is abolished, and this Act expires [~~effective~~] September 1, 1987 [~~1983~~].

**SECTION 57.** Subsection (n), Section 50.004, Human Resources Code, is amended to read as follows:

(n) The council is subject to the Texas Sunset Act, as amended (Article 5429k, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes). Unless continued in existence as provided by that Act, the council is abolished and this section expires effective September 1, 1989 [~~1987~~]. If the council is continued in existence beyond that date, subsequent sunset provisions should be made to conform with those of the Texas Department of Human Resources.

**SECTION 58.** This Act takes effect September 1, 1985.

**SECTION 59.** The importance of this legislation and the crowded condition of the calendars in both houses create an emergency and an imperative public necessity that the constitutional rule requiring bills to be read on three several days in each house be suspended, and this rule is hereby suspended.

Passed by the House on May 20, 1985, by a non-record vote; House concurred in Senate amendments to H.B. No. 1585 on May 27, 1985, by the following vote: Yeas 115, Nays 29, 1 present, not voting; passed by the Senate, with amendments, on May 27, 1985, by a viva-voce vote.

Approved: June 14, 1985

Effective: September 1, 1985